Jill Callahan Engle

Professor of Clinical Law, Penn State Law, University Park, PA Phone: 814-571-7827 | Email: <u>ine2@psu.edu</u>

CURRENT POSITION:

Penn State Law—University Park, PA (2009-present)

Professor of Clinical Law: I currently teach first-year Constitutional Law, Professional Responsibility, Law & (In)equity, and Human Rights, Intersectionality & the Law Seminar. I also advise the Arbitration Law Review, and co-chair the faculty Diversity Committee.

PREVIOUS POSITIONS:

Rutgers Law – Newark, NJ (January-May 2023)

Visiting Professor of Law: I taught first-year Constitutional Law, and Professional Responsibility, at the Rutgers Law School in Newark, New Jersey during the spring 2023 semester.

Penn State Law—University Park, PA (July 2019-December 2022)

Associate Dean for Academic Affairs: Reporting directly to the Dean, I served as a key advisor for 2 successive deans, while managing the operations of all our academic programs. I also served the wider University on the Faculty Affairs Advisory Council for the Vice Provost for Faculty Affairs. As the law school's primary academic officer, I planned, delivered, and assessed all curricular matters for our JD, LLM, MLS, and SJD students. I oversaw our joint degree programs, including a new JD/Master's in Public Health that I developed, and an innovative "custom" joint JD that students can pair with any cooperating degree at Penn State University. I worked with interdisciplinary teams to launch new Master's in Legal Studies; Master's in Engineering, Law, & Policy; and Master's in Taxation degrees. I led the search for our transformative Assistant Dean of Student Services in 2019, and I oversaw the transition of our former Student Services Dean to Associate Dean for Academic Success. I transitioned our Registrar operations from a two-person team to one extraordinary performer using new technology and processes. I served on the Advisory Council for Penn State's Vice Provost for Faculty Affairs. In leadership of our faculty hiring efforts along with the Dean, I managed successful searches for numerous tenure-stream and other full-time faculty members. I independently hired and managed all our adjunct and visiting faculty. I led our academic integrity operations, often in collaboration with Penn State's Office of General Counsel.

<u>Director</u>, Family Law Clinic (2010-2019): Launched the clinic in January 2010. Grew it into one of our largest clinics, serving mostly domestic violence survivors. Added post-graduate fellows and grant-funded staff attorneys. I also taught Family Law and Professional Responsibility. <u>Director</u>, Externships (2015-2019): Redesigned the program, adding Externships Everywhere, paid externships, and remote externships. Developed new curriculum and added two faculty. <u>Director</u>, <u>Public Interest Programs (2015-2019)</u>: Managed our IOLTA grant from the PA Supreme Court, which funds student public interest fellowships and the Family Law Clinic.

Adjunct Lecturer (2007-2009): I taught Family Law in traditional and hybrid classroom formats.

EDUCATION

American University Washington College of Law, Washington, DC

JD, 2000

Cum laude, Marshall-Brennan Fellow, Journal of Gender, Social Policy & the Law, Criminal Justice Clinic, Juvenile Law Moot Court Team

Pennsylvania State University, University Park, PA

BA in Communications, 1990

The Daily Collegian columnist and reporter

TEACHING

Courses taught: Constitutional Law; Human Rights, Intersectionality, & the Law (new course I developed in 2021 on race & gender); Professional Responsibility; Family Law; Family Law Clinic; Street Law; Externships; Media Law (PSU College of Communications 2002-04).

Other teaching interests: Domestic Violence; Poverty Law; Contracts; Torts; Civil Rights; Dispute Resolution; Civil Procedure; Public Health; Evidence.

SELECTED PUBLICATIONS

"Access, Welfare, & Lawsuits: Restoring Reproductive & Economic Autonomy Post-*Dobbs*" 59 U. Richmond L. Rev. ___ (forthcoming 2024).

Reimagining Classroom Hierarchies, chapter in BUILDING THE ANTI-RACIST LAW SCHOOL (forthcoming 2024).

"Sexual Violence, Intangible Harms, and Transformative Remedies," 79 WASH. & LEE L. REV. 1045 (2022) (invited symposium), also reprinted in 39 CIVIL RIGHTS LITIGATION AND ATTORNEY FEES ANNUAL HANDBOOK (Steven Saltzman, ed., 2023).

"There Isn't Any Dumpster," 27 Am. U. J. GENDER, SOC. POL'Y & L. 127 (2019) (invited symposium).

"Improving Outcomes in Child Poverty and Wellness in Appalachia in the 'New Normal' Era: Infusing Empathy into Law," 120 W. VA. L. REV. 1047 (2017-18).

"Comparing Supreme Court Jurisprudence in Obergefell v. Hodges and Town of Castle Rock v. Gonzales: A Watershed Moment for Due Process Liberty," 17 GEO. J. GENDER & L. 575 (2016).

"Taming the Tigers: Domestic Violence, Legal Professionalism, and Well-Being," 4 TENN. J. RACE, GENDER & SOC. JUST. 1 (2015).

"Mandatory Reporting of Campus Sexual Assault and Domestic Violence: Moving to a Victim-Centric Protocol that Comports with Federal Law," 24 TEMP. POL. & CIV. RTS. L. REV. 401 (2015).

"Promoting the General Welfare: Legal Reform to Lift Women and Children in the United States Out of Poverty," 16 IOWA J. GENDER, RACE & JUST. 1 (2013).

"Collaborative Law in Legal Education: No Time Like the Present," 2 PENN STATE YEARBOOK ON ARBITRATION & MEDIATION 65 (2010).

PRIMARY AREAS OF SCHOLARSHIP: Human rights, poverty, economic inequality, family law, gender-based violence, reproductive rights, intersectionality, critical race theory, & legal ethics.

SELECTED PRESENTATIONS

SEALS (SOUTHEASTERN ASSOCIATION OF LAW SCHOOLS): presented "Abortion & Poverty post-Dobbs and participated on a pedagogy panel on teaching Family Law topics in Constitutional Law. July 2023

LAW & SOCIETY ASSOCIATION: presented "Abortion & Poverty post-Dobbs.

May 2023

BERKELEY LAW: presented "Abortion & Poverty post-Dobbs" at Poverty Law Conference March 2023

SOCIETY OF AMERICAN LAW TEACHERS: panelist on teaching the *Dobbs v. Jackson Whole Women's Health* decision at annual conference of law professors.

October 2022

WASHINGTON & LEE UNIVERSITY SCHOOL OF LAW: presented on intersectionality and restorative justice at the Symposium on Intersectionality and Human Rights.

March 2022

PENN STATE UNIVERSITY: Moderated a panel on intersectionality foundations at the Symposium on "Addressing Intersectionality to Transform Leadership at Penn State." February 2021

AALS SECTION OF ASSOCIATE DEANS: co-presenter on well-being for law school administrators to monthly Zoom webinar, with Assoc. Dean David Jaffe of American University.

December 2020

UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA LEVIN COLLEGE OF LAW: presented to faculty on best practices for teaching in the remote and hybrid environment.

June 2020

AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF LAW SCHOOLS: Panelist for Building and Sustaining Alliances as an Associate Dean at annual conference.

January 2020

LAW AND SOCIETY ASSOCIATION: Panelist for "The Kavanaugh Confirmation: Thoughts on Sex and Gender Now that the Dust Has Cleared" at annual conference.

June 2019

AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF LAW SCHOOLS: Discussant for junior scholar's work-in-progress on same-sex parental rights at annual clinical conference.

May 2019

AMERICAN UNIVERSITY LAW: Presented "There Isn't Any Dumpster" at Constitutional Law in the Classroom conference.

April 2019

SOCIETY OF AMERICAN LAW TEACHERS: Presented "Classroom Nuts and Bolts to Rebuild a Legal System Infused with Empathy" at annual conference in University Park (Penn State Law). October 2018

AMERICAN UNIVERSITY LAW: Presented "Teaching Skills for Recognizing Humanity & Promoting Empathy" at *Project on Integrating Spirituality into Law & Politics* annual conference. October 2018

LAW AND SOCIETY ASSOCIATION: Presented "Improving Outcomes in Child Poverty & Wellness in Appalachia in the 'New Normal' Era: Infusing Empathy into Law" at annual conference.

June 2018

AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF LAW SCHOOLS: Discussant for junior scholar's work-in-progress on immigration law at annual clinical conference in Chicago.

May 2018

SELECTED PRESENTATIONS, continued

PENN STATE LAW: Presented work-in-progress on campus sexual assault with Dr. Rose Jolly (Penn State's Weiss Chair of the Humanities) and Dr. Sarah Clark Miller (Penn State Philosophy Dept.). September 2017

AMERICAN UNIVERSITY LAW: Presented "Improving Outcomes in Child Poverty and Wellness in Appalachia in the 'New Normal' Era: Infusing Empathy into Law" at *Poverty States: Federalism, Rights, and State Anti-Poverty Efforts* conference.

March 2018

LAW AND SOCIETY ASSOCIATION: Presented work-in-progress "Re-conceptualizing Harm: Legal Rights and Remedies for Women and Children" at annual conference.

June 2017

AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF LAW SCHOOLS: Panelist on teaching methodologies using the *Beyond Best Practices in Legal Education* book, at annual clinical conference.

May 2017

PENN STATE LAW: Panelist for *Domestic Violence and the Criminal Law System's Response*, with Prof. Dara Purvis and Univ. of Maryland Prof. Leigh Goodmark.

April 2017

AMERICAN UNIVERSITY LAW: Presented work-in-progress on sexual assault at workshop. October 2016

PENN STATE LAW: Panelist on First Amendment, technology, and election law, with Prof. Anne McKenna and Newseum Foundation Director Gene Policinski, at CLE session for alumni. October 2016

LAW AND SOCIETY ASSOCIATION: Presented work-in-progress on sexual assault at annual conference, with Dr. Rose Jolly (Penn State's Weiss Chair of the Humanities) and Courtney Kiehl (PSL 2015). June 2016

AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF LAW SCHOOLS: Panelist for Campus Sexual Assault Prevention Initiatives,
Clinical Conference in Baltimore MD

May 2016

PENN STATE COLLEGE OF HEALTH AND HUMAN DEVELOPMENT: Guest lecturer on domestic violence and health care intersections for graduate-level Health Law course.

March 2016

HARVARD LAW SCHOOL: Presented on sexual assault at regional AALS conference. November 2015

PENN STATE LAW: Presented on domestic violence and sexual assault at annual forum October 2015

PENN STATE LAW: Presented on due process liberty and the *Obergefell* case. September 2015

AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF LAW SCHOOLS: Panelist for *Clinical Community 2.0: Online tools to Build,*Expand, and Strengthen Clinician Support Networks at Clinical Conference, Rancho Mirage CA.

May 1, 2015

AMERICAN UNIVERSITY LAW: Presented Helping Your Law Students Find Their Professional Identity
Through Reflective Learning at Igniting Law Teaching 2015: Pathways to Practice.

March 2015

UNIV. OF TENNESSEE COLLEGE OF LAW: Keynote speaker for Taming the Tiger: Professionally Representing Your Client in Domestic Violence Cases & Navigating Order of Protection Court. March 2015

TEMPLE UNIVERSITY BEASLEY SCHOOL OF LAW Panelist for Symposium: VAWA [Violence Against Women Act] at 20 - Where Do We Go From Here? Philadelphia, Pennsylvania.

November 2014

SELECTED PRESENTATIONS, continued

PEPPERDINE UNIVERSITY SCHOOL OF LAW: Panelist on campus sexual assault for *Student Life*, Relationships & the Law: Confronting Domestic Violence in Higher Education.

October 2014

CROKE PARK CONFERENCE CENTER: Panelist for Penn State/UNESCO Symposium on Youth Civic Engagement and Leadership in Dublin, Ireland.

August 2014

AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF LAW SCHOOLS: Panelist for Cross-Fertilization Comes in Many Colors:

Diverse Clinical Strategies to Address Family Violence at clinical conference.

May 2013

NATIONAL BLACK LAW STUDENTS' ASSOCIATION CONVENTION: Panelist and moderator for A Family Affair: Courts, Law and Society's Reaction and Re-Definition of the Familial Structure.

March 2013

TEMPLE UNIVERSITY LAW SCHOOL: presented Jessica Lenahan (Gonzales) v. USA: Inter-American Commission on Human Rights Finds U.S. Violation in Abuse Killings at Feminist Law Profs conf. December 2012

INT'L ACADEMY OF COLLABORATIVE LAW: Panelist on divorce and economics. October 2012

PENN STATE LAW: Panelist for *Identity Crisis: Voter ID Laws and the 2012 Election.* October 2012

PENN STATE LAW: Presented Ethics portion of Collaborative Law Basic Training. October 2011

DREXEL UNIVERSITY EARLE MACK SCHOOL OF LAW: Presented Legal Reform to Lift Women & Children Out of Poverty at Feminist Law Professors conference. January 2012

PENNSYLVANIA BAR INSTITUTE: Panelist on reproductive technology issues for "Law on the Frontiers of Technology" Forum in Philadelphia.

October 2010

LEADERSHIP, SERVICE, & PARTNERSHIPS

Research Engagement And Community Healing (PSU interdisciplinary group)	2014-present
Associate Dean for Academic Affairs (Penn State Law)	2019-2022
Vice Chair of the Faculty (Penn State Law)	2017-2019
Fellow, American Bar Foundation	2022-present
AALS Balance Section Executive Committee Member, Awards Subcommittee Chair	2019-present
AALS Women in Legal Education Section Executive Committee Member	2019-present
AALS Clinical Section Communications Committee Chair	2012-2016
Clinical Legal Education Association Best Practices Committee	2012-2018
Changing the Future for Women at Penn State Leadership Program	2020-2021
YES!World Law & Social Change Jam	2018
Gender Violence Collaborative Community Education Committee Chair	2016-2019
Communities that Care of Centre County (Chair 2015-2016)	2004-2017
Habitat for Humanity of Greater Centre County Board of Directors	2008-2011
Mid-Penn Legal Services Board of Directors	2008-2020
Young Lawyers' Division (Centre County Bar Association) Chair	2005-2007

Penn State Law Service: Diversity Committee Chair 2023-present; Well-Being Task Force Co-Chair 2020-present; Appointments Committee 2019-22; Curriculum Committee 2013-15, 2019-22; Public Interest Committee Chair 2017-19; Awards Committee 2018-19; Minority Mentor 2015-present; Clinics Committee 2010-13.

Key Accomplishments as Associate Dean for Academic Affairs

- Managed the planning and delivery of remote courses and final exams during COVID as liaison between the faculty, student, and staff constituencies including our IT team.
- Led the move to a "credit/no credit" grading system in spring 2020, which entailed gathering extensive input from students and faculty in a collaborative style, including student representatives on the Curriculum Committee and numerous faculty meeting discussions.
- Co-chaired Penn State Law's COVID teaching response team and developed a faculty "Teaching with Technology" workshop series and resource repository.
- Developed an online system for our COVID hybrid course delivery methods where students indicated their preferences for in-person or remote learning course-by-course.
- Rearranged all classrooms for elective courses to de-densify, while enabling students to attend classes in-person even with some faculty teaching remotely during COVID.
- Overhauled our first-year core curriculum to evenly distribute remote and in-person instructors evenly among all first-year students and courses during COVID.
- Chaired the 2019-20 search committee for our Assistant Dean for Student Services, resulting in an exciting hire that advanced the diversity of our leadership team and brought us important expertise in student well-being and racial justice.
- In response to the killing of George Floyd and others, granted our students' request for a new Race, Equity, & the Law Concentration, and made the founding pledge to establish our George Floyd Memorial Scholarship (now over \$130,000.00 and growing).
- Helped develop Dean's cabinet-style Administrative Coordinators Group.
- Established a Mental Health Awareness Week. and Well-Being Committee (co-chair).
- Implemented a Concentrations program, in response to student requests to enhance their employment opportunities, designed around our existing Specialized Fields of Study.
- Introduced numerous courses, including AI's Past, Present and Future; Contract Drafting;
 COVID-19: Law & Tech Policy; Data & Democracy: Foreign Interference in Elections;
 Advanced Corporations; Employee Benefits & Equity Compensation; Federal Crimes; Food
 Law; Government Contracts; Human Rights, Intersectionality, & the Law; Land Use

Regulation; Litigation and Business Transactions; Litigating Cases in the Real World; Minority Business Ownership; Unincorporated Associations; Investment Arbitration; and Private Wealth Planning.

PENN STATE UNIVERSITY-WIDE SERVICE

Vice Provost for Faculty Affairs' Advisory Council; Graduate Council; COVID Academic Affairs Leadership team; Academic Leadership Forum; PA Higher Education in Prisons Consortium; Penn State/Centre County Sexual Assault Task Force

LEGAL WORK EXPERIENCE

ENGLE KAUFFMAN, & VAN HORN, P.C., State College PA. Founding partner. Practiced family law including litigation, transactions, mediation and collaborative law. Also did housing, juvenile, civil rights and other civil litigation. Managed the firm's marketing, staffing, and planning.

2004-2010

MASORTI, SULLIVAN & ENGLE, State College PA. Practiced family & juvenile law. 2002-2004

HON. NEAL KRAVITZ, Washington, DC Superior Court: Law clerk working on civil, criminal, and landlord-tenant dockets, and family/juvenile law cases. 2001-2002

LERCH, EARLY & BREWER, Bethesda, MD. Worked in the firm's litigation section. 2001

MORGAN LEWIS & BOCKIUS, Washington, DC: Attorney and law clerk in the firm's litigation section, including a pro bono death row prisoner case in federal district court. 1999-2001

OTHER WORK EXPERIENCE

NATIONAL LEAGUE OF CITIES, Washington, DC. Directed an Affordable Housing Program. Managed training/technical assistance program on affordable housing for city officials. 1997-1999

FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER, Altoona, PA. Directed a Head Start-affiliated early childhood education program. Managed a team of six; provided outreach and marketing.

1995-1997

HEAD START, Bedford, PA: Admin. Coordinator-early childhood education program. 1993-1995.

AREA AGENCY ON AGING, Bedford, PA: Program Director, Family Caregiver Program; Protective Services Caseworker investigating elder abuse. 1991-1993.

HONORS

Penn State Law Annual Faculty Award Finalist	2020
Pennsylvania Bar Association Pro Bono Attorneys of the Year award	2010
Communities that Care Outstanding Board Member	2007

BAR ADMISSIONS

Pennsylvania and New York.

2002-present